

American Electric Power 1 Riverside Plaza Columbus, OH 43215-2373 AEP.com

January 21, 2014

Mr. John Therriault Clerk Illinois Pollution Control Board 100 W. Randolph St, Suite 11-500 Chicago, IL 60601

Dear Mr. Therriault:

RE: R2014-020 – Emergency Rulemaking Regarding Regulations of Coke/Bulk Terminals: New 35 Ill Adm. Code 213

These comments are submitted by American Electric Power Service Corporation (AEPSC), on behalf of AEP Generating Company, the owner of the Cook Coal Terminal (CCT) located in Massac County near the city of Metropolis on the Emergency Rulemaking Regarding New Regulations for Coke and Coal Bulk Terminals proposed to be adopted on an emergency basis as 35 Ill Adm. Code Section 213. The proposal does not satisfy the requirements for emergency action, and the substantive requirements of the rules are overly prescriptive, technically and economically infeasible, internally inconsistent, and have the potential to increase fugitive dust emissions from the regulated Terminals during their implementation. In addition, the rule as proposed has numerous deadlines for compliance that are infeasible for various climatological and technical reasons. AEPSC urges the Illinois Pollution Control Board (Board) to reject the emergency proposal and require the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) to commence a rulemaking process that affords full and adequate public participation, so that, if ultimately deemed necessary, additional requirements for these valuable facilities can be adopted after a full and fair opportunity for public participation.

CCT was opened in 1974 by the American Electric Power System as a terminal for the transshipment of Powder River Basin coal from rail transportation to barges for use in its power plants along the Ohio River in Indiana, Ohio, and West Virginia. Currently CCT employs 79 with an annual payroll of approximately \$7,000,000. CCT paid property taxes to Massac County entities of approximately \$620,000 during calendar year 2013, and is a valuable contributor to the community. The facility occupies approximately 1600 acres and is located in a semi-rural area over one mile from the city limits of Metropolis, Illinois as described in Ill. Rev. Stat. 1981, ch. 24, par. 1-1-2. The facility holds an air permit that regulates fugitive emissions from the loading, unloading and other activities on site that was issued by IEPA in 2003 and is currently in the process of being renewed. A copy of that permit is attached for your reference as Attachment A. In addition, stormwater and other wastewater discharges

Mr. John Therriault January 21, 2014 Page 2

from the facility are regulated under an NPDES Permit issued by IEPA in 2010. A copy of that permit is attached for your reference as Attachment B. Through these permits, the operations at the CCT are adequately controlled, and pose no threat to public health or the environment. Regular reports are required, and IEPA has all the authority necessary to monitor, inspect and enforce the applicable requirements at our facility. None of the adverse conditions described in the motion filed by IEPA as having been observed at Terminal facilities in Cook County are alleged to have been observed at any coal terminal we are aware of outside of Cook County and are not present at CCT.

The Use of the Emergency Provisions in Illinois Law is not Appropriate for this Rulemaking

The motion and supporting information filed by IEPA contain no specific findings of a public health emergency or disaster condition justifying the use of the emergency rulemaking provisions in this case. Indeed, except for general assertions regarding "observations" made by IEPA at an undisclosed facility in Cook County, and the generic assertion that a state-wide emergency rule is necessary to prevent an operator from relocating to an "unregulated" part of the state, there is no justification given for the use of this extraordinary process to regulate widely different operations across the state.

The comments of the Illinois Manufacturer's Association (IMA), Kinder Morgan, Inc., and the Chemical Industry Council of Illinois describe in detail the lack of justification for pursuing this rulemaking as an Emergency Rule. In addition, the IMA comments describe in some detail the background of this rulemaking. We would note that the current owners of the bulk terminal involved in those events have spent considerable resources to resolve the issue through the installation of new fugitive dust controls. IEPA does not acknowledge this in their filing and resort to generalized assertions that we believe fail to meet the requirements for pursuing an Emergency Rulemaking.

Moreover, IEPA's attempt to create an entirely new regulatory regime for not only the Cook County facility, but any facility located in the State of Illinois, regardless of the similarities or differences in the location, operation, or permitting history of the facilities, has no basis in fact. We encourage the Board to seriously consider these issues and reject this rulemaking as an emergency, sending it back to IEPA for proposal as a normal rulemaking and allowing a full discourse on the issues raised in the proposal.

Conflicts Between Sections of the Rule and the Unintended Consequences of the Rule

In reviewing the content of these rules we note that there are apparent conflicts between comparable requirements found in Sections 213.220 and 213.320 on the timing of the installation of an impermeable barrier under all coke or coal storage piles. Section 213.220 indicates that when the full enclosure of the piles is completed within two years of enactment, the base of the enclosure must be impermeable. While this requirement makes some sense in this context, the requirement of Section 213.320 appears to require that the impermeable barrier be in place under all piles no later than sixty days after enactment, some 22 months earlier than the requirements in Section 213.220.

A sixty day installation requirement for a large coal handling terminal like CCT is infeasible given the size of the facility, the available area to relocate a pile while an impermeable base is installed in the appropriate areas to allow the proper operation of the under pile feed system, and the potential need for preconstruction approvals from IEPA. Moreover, relocating a pile, installing an impermeable base, and

Mr. John Therriault January 21, 2014 Page 3

then replacing the pile atop the newly installed base has the potential to unnecessarily generate large amounts of fugitive dust just to place a "temporary liner" under an existing pile. This also will increase the operating costs of the facility with little environmental benefit. Currently, coal stored near the two stone ladders at CCT is equipped with an under pile feeder system that minimizes the generation of fugitive dust by allowing conveyors to be loaded from beneath the pile. Other areas that cannot be feasibly served by the under pile feeders are served by Dozer Traps, again to minimize the generation of fugitive dust in the transfer of coal from the outdoor storage areas to the barge loader for shipping. Each pile sits on a base of compacted soil and coal that itself has very low permeability. Drainage around the piles is collected and managed in a series of culverts and ponds that provide adequate settling prior to discharge pursuant to the terms of the permit issued by IEPA.

We recommend that IEPA be required to demonstrate that its proposed rule will provide greater environmental protection and not generate unnecessary amounts of fugitive dust through implementation of the new requirements for impermeable bases.

Full Enclosure is Not Necessary

There are a large number of outdoor piles of coal located at various facilities in Illinois, such as steel mills, power plants, and other manufacturing and heating facilities. We fully agree that proper pile management practices are critical to minimize the generation of dust from storage piles and the proper design and management of the material handling systems are important to the control of fugitive dust. However, full enclosure of piles and other transshipment operations as called for in Section 213.220 is technically and economically infeasible and would place affected facilities in Illinois at a competitive disadvantage for no greater environmental protection.

Our company wide experience with the management of coal piles and coal handling at our coal fired power plants clearly indicates that properly compacted and managed open storage piles of 75 to 100 feet above local grade can withstand high winds without releasing significant fugitive dust. We believe that the requirement proposed in Section 213.235 to limit the pile height to 30 feet is unnecessary and unjustified when proper pile management practices are used. Further, the Powder River Basin Coal received at CCT generally has a moisture content significantly higher than the minimum required values in the proposed rules, on the order of 25% or more.

As previously discussed, all coal loaded into outdoor piles is moved into the conveyor system leading to the barge loader using either the under pile feeder system or a Dozer Trap system to minimize fugitive dust. All conveyors, if not totally enclosed have wind hoods to minimize fugitive dust while coal is running on the belt and transfers are done in enclosed chutes, even if the chute is not physically located in an enclosed building. As such, the expense of a total enclosure for the storage piles is not justified, and would interfere with routine operations at the terminal.

We recommend that the Board consider whether IEPA has provided support and justification for these requirements and demonstrated why proper storage pile management in accordance with good operating practice and an IEPA approved fugitive dust management plan are inadequate. The lack of consideration of these issues is further justification for denying this proposed emergency status.

Mr. John Therriault January 21, 2014 Page 4

Removal of all Coke or Coal Within 1-Year of Receipt is not Warranted

We believe that the provisions requiring the removal of all Coke or Coal from a facility within one year, as called for in Section 213.215, is impractical and unrealistic, providing another example of misguided regulations that will potentially result in higher emissions from a facility than would leaving a well-managed pile of material alone until it is ready to be sent on to its end user. Unnecessarily relocating coal that would otherwise not be moved will potentially result in increased fugitive dust emissions from a pile that has few emissions.

An additional issue that IEPA has not properly considered is that "base coal" exists under all coal piles and is embedded in the material forming the base of the pile. A requirement to remove this coal after no more than a year would result in the potential destruction of the base/liner under the pile with no environmental benefit.

We recommend that the Board evaluate whether IEPA has demonstrated the need for this requirement and whether this requirement is even necessary if a facility is properly managing storage piles under an IEPA approved fugitive dust management plan. We do not believe IEPA has met this demonstration in its request for a statewide emergency rule.

The Requirement to Pave All Roads on Site within 90 Days

At a relatively compact terminal in an urban area, paving on-site roads might be feasible and necessary, especially if a chip and seal surface is suitable for compliance with the requirement. However, for terminals located on the Mississippi and Ohio River that cover large areas, paving every road on the site as required in Section 213.245 is unnecessary. In addition, it may not be feasible to pave all of the roads on site within 90 days of enactment since most of this period will occur during cold weather when laying significant hot mix asphalt or chip and seal materials is infeasible as the suppliers are not in operation.

We would also point out that many of the roads outside of the core area of CCT are lightly used and are primarily traversed for security or site maintenance reasons. At CCT we have gravel roads along the miles of railroad track for use in rail car management and maintenance. These roads also provide access to the tracks for emergency situations and track repair. These roads are not used by everyday traffic entering and departing the site and are not connected to any roads outside of the site.

We suggest that the Board consider the number of roads that would be impacted by this overarching rule and determine if circumstances truly justify the paving of all such roads. The lack of justification provided by IEPA for this provision is further reason to deny the request for emergency rulemaking status.

Impermeable Bases Under Storage Piles

The requirement to install new impermeable bases under existing piles should be tied to the potential for contamination of ground or surface water by the material being stored and not the simple existence of the pile. At facilities such as CCT that use under pile feeders to remove coal from storage piles on

Mr. John Therriault January 21, 2014 Page 5

the site, the material would ultimately need to be replaced over the under pile feeder system to load it onto the barges that will take it to its end users, resulting in the material being handled multiple times, increasing the potential for fugitive dust emissions. Adequate time must also be available to assure that proper drainage and stormwater controls can be designed and implemented to work in conjunction with the new base.

IEPA has again failed to justify the widespread need for an emergency provision of this nature in the rulemaking proposal.

This Rule Potentially Renders Illinois Bulk Terminals at an Economic Disadvantage in the Market for Transship Services

Full implementation of these requirements will likely increase the costs for bulk terminals that handle Coke and Coal in Illinois and diminish their competitiveness, potentially resulting in their closure with a concomitant loss of jobs and tax base. Recognizing that the terminals in surrounding states do not generally have to meet equivalent requirements to those proposed, the promulgation of these rules as noticed, increases the risk that the materials currently being sent through terminals located in Illinois, bringing jobs and taxes to Illinois, could move to terminals in other states reducing the number of jobs in Illinois. At this time we cannot say with certainty what the financial impact will be on CCT as the time provided is inadequate to accurately estimate the cost to comply with the Emergency Rules should they be promulgated as proposed.

We encourage the Board to deny this motion because an emergency does not exist, reject the rules as proposed, and after proper consideration if the Board determines such rules are necessary then request IEPA to follow rulemaking procedures that will provide due process to those entities affected. In its deliberations, we urge the Board to give consideration to the potential impacts on jobs and on the state and local economies.

AEPSC, on behalf of AEP Generating Company, appreciates this opportunity to comment on this rulemaking and looks forward to working constructively with IEPA and the Pollution Control Board. If you have any questions on the technical content of these comments, please contact David J. Long of my staff at 614-716-1245 or djlong@aep.com.

Sincerely,

John C. Hendricks

John C. Hendricks

Director – Air Quality Services

Mr. John Therriault January 21, 2014 Page 6

cc: J. M. McManus

J. J. Henry

D. J. Long
G. Stiltner – Cook Coal Terminal

ATTACHMENT A



ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

P.O. Box 19506, Springfield, Illinois 62794-9506
Renee Cipriano, Director

217/782-2113

TITLE V - CLEAN AIR ACT PERMIT PROGRAM (CAAPP) PERMIT and TITLE I PERMIT¹

PERMITTEE

Ohio Power Company - Cook Coal Terminal Attn: Rob S. Korte, Environmental Coordinator 3316 North U.S. 45 Road P.O. Box 870 Metropolis, Illinois 62960

Application No.: 95060050 Applicant's Designation: Operation of: Coal Handling

I.D. No.: 127854AAC

Date Received: June 7, 1995

Responsible Official: S. M. DeBord, Terminal Manager

This permit is hereby granted to the above-designated Permittee to OPERATE a coal transfer facility, pursuant to the above referenced permit application. This permit is subject to the conditions contained herein.

If you have any questions concerning this permit, please contact John Cashman at 217/782-2113.

Donald E. Sutton, P.E. Manager, Permit Section

Division of Air Pollution Control

anald & Suffen / E

DES:JRC:jar

cc: Illinois EPA, FOS, Region 3

CES

Lotus Notes

This permit may contain terms and conditions which address the applicability, and compliance if determined applicable, of Title I of the CAA and regulations promulgated thereunder, including 40 CFR 52.21 - federal PSD and 35 IAC Part 203 - Major Stationary Sources Construction and Modification. Any such terms and conditions are identified within this permit.

Except as provided in Condition 8.7 of this permit.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

¥15		PAGE
1.0	SOURCE IDENTIFICATION	4
	1.1 Source 1.2 Owner/Parent Company 1.3 Operator 1.4 General Source Description	
2.0	LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS USED IN THIS PERMIT	5
3.0	INSIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES	6
	3.1 Identification of Insignificant Activities 3.2 Compliance with Applicable Requirements 3.3 Addition of Insignificant Activities	
4.0	SIGNIFICANT EMISSION UNITS AT THIS SOURCE	8
5.0	OVERALL SOURCE CONDITIONS	9
	5.1 Source Description 5.2 Applicable Regulations 5.3 Non-Applicability of Regulations of Concern 5.4 Source-Wide Operational and Production Limits and Work Practices 5.5 Source-Wide Emission Limitations 5.6 General Recordkeeping Requirements 5.7 General Reporting Requirements	
	 5.8 General Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios General Compliance Procedures 	
6.0	NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS PERMIT	14
7.0	UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS	15
	7.1 Coal Handling Equipment	
8.0	GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS	18
	8.1 Permit Shield 8.2 Applicability of Title IV Requirements 8.3 Emissions Trading Programs 8.4 Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios 8.5 Testing Procedures 8.6 Reporting Requirements 8.7 Obligation to Comply with Title I Requirements	
9.0	STANDARD PERMIT CONDITIONS	23
	9.1 Effect of Permit 9.2 General Obligations of Permittee 9.3 Obligation to Allow Illinois EPA Surveillance 9.4 Obligation to Comply with Other Requirements 9.5 Liability	

		*	PAGE
	9.6	Recordkeeping	
	9.7	Annual Emissions Report	
	9.8	Requirements for Compliance Certification	
	9.9	Certification	
	9.10	Defense to Enforcement Actions	
	9.11	Permanent Shutdown	
	9.12	Reopening And Reissuing Permit For Cause	
	9.13		
	9.14	Permit Expiration and Renewal	
	•		
10.0	ATTAC	HMENTS	
	10.1	Attachment 1 - Emissions of Particulate Matter from New	1-1
		Process Emission Units	
	10.2	Attachment 2 - Example Certification by a Responsible	2-1
		Official	
	10.3	Attachment 3 - Guidance on Revising This Permit	3-1
	10.4	Attachment 4 - Form 199-CAAPP, Application For	4-1
	20.1	Construction Permit (For CAAPP Sources Only)	2 4
	10 5	Attachment 5 - Guidance on Renewing This Permit	5-1
	TO 13	Accommence of Actionics of Kellewing Into Perfect	بر - ن

1.0 SOURCE IDENTIFICATION

1.1 Source

Ohio Power Company - Cook Coal Terminal 3316 North U.S. 45 Road P.O. Box 870 Metropolis, Illinois 62960 618/524-1927

I.D. No.: 127854AAC Standard Industrial Classification: 4491, Material Handling

1.2 Owner/Parent Company

Ohio Power Company - Cook Coal Terminal 3316 North U.S. 45 Road P.O. Box 870 Metropolis, Illinois 62960

1.3 Operator

Ohio Power Company - Cook Coal Terminal 3316 North U.S. 45 Road P.O. Box 870 Metropolis, Illinois 62960

Rob S. Korte, Environmental Coordinator 618/524-9345

1.4 General Source Description

Ohio Power Company is located at 3316 North U.S. 45 Road, Metropolis. The source transfers coal from railcar to barges.

2.0 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS USED IN THIS PERMIT

ACMA	Alternative Compliance Market Account		
Act	Illinois Environmental Protection Act [415 ILCS 5/1 et seq.]		
AP-42	Compilation of Air Pollutant Emission Factors, Volume 1,		
	Stationary Point and Other Sources (and Supplements A		
	through F), USEPA, Office of Air Quality Planning and		
	Standards, Research Triangle Park, NC 27711		
ATU	Allotment Trading Unit		
BAT	Best Available Technology		
Btu	British thermal unit		
CAA	Clean Air Act [42 U.S.C. Section 7401 et seq.]		
CAAPP	Clean Air Act Permit Program		
CAM	Compliance Assurance Monitoring		
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations		
ERMS	Emissions Reduction Market System		
HAP	Hazardous Air Pollutant		
hr	hour		
IAC Illinois Administrative Code			
I.D. No.	Identification Number of Source, assigned by Illinois EPA		
ILCS	Illinois Compiled Statutes		
Illinois EPA	Illinois Environmental Protection Agency		
kW	kilowatts		
LAER	Lowest Achievable Emission Rate		
lb	pound		
MACT	Maximum Achievable Control Technology		
mmBtu	Million British thermal units		
NESHAP	National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants		
NOx	Nitrogen Oxides		
NSPS	New Source Performance Standards		
PM	Particulate Matter		
PM ₁₀	Particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or		
1940	equal to a nominal 10 microns as measured by applicable test		
	or monitoring methods		
ppm	parts per million		
PSD	Prevention of Significant Deterioration		
RMP	Risk Management Plan		
SO₂	Sulfur Dioxide		
T1	Title I - identifies Title I conditions that have been		
	carried over from an existing permit		
TIN	Title I New - identifies Title I conditions that are being		
	established in this permit		
T1R			
	been carried over from an existing permit and subsequently		
	revised in this permit		
USEPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency		
VOM	Volatile Organic Material		

3.0 INSIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES

3.1 Identification of Insignificant Activities

The following activities at the source constitute insignificant activities as specified in 35 IAC 201.210:

3.1.1 Activities determined by the Illinois EPA to be insignificant activities, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(a)(1) and 201.211, as follows:

None

3.1.2 Activities that are insignificant activities based upon maximum emissions, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(a)(2) or (a)(3), as follows:

None

3.1.3 Activities that are insignificant activities based upon their type or character, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(a)(4) through (18), as follows:

Direct combustion units designed and used for comfort heating purposes and fuel combustion emission units as follows: (A) Units with a rated heat input capacity of less than 2.5 mmBtu/hr that fire only natural gas, propane, or liquefied petroleum gas; (B) Units with a rated heat input capacity of less than 1.0 mmBtu/hr that fire only oil or oil in combination with only natural gas, propane, or liquefied petroleum gas; and (C) Units with a rated heat input capacity of less than 200,000 Btu/hr which never burn refuse, or treated or chemically contaminated wood [35 IAC 201.210(a)(4)].

Storage tanks of organic liquids with a capacity of less than 10,000 gallons and an annual throughput of less than 100,000 gallons per year, provided the storage tank is not used for the storage of gasoline or any material listed as a HAP pursuant to Section 112(b) of the CAA [35 IAC 201.210(a)(10)].

Storage tanks of any size containing virgin or rerefined distillate oil, hydrocarbon condensate from natural gas pipeline or storage systems, lubricating oil, or residual fuel oils [35 IAC 201.210(a)(11)].

- 3.1.4 Activities that are considered insignificant activities pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(b).
- 3.2 Compliance with Applicable Requirements

Insignificant activities are subject to applicable requirements notwithstanding status as insignificant activities. In particular, in addition to regulations of general applicability, such as 35 IAC 212.301 and 212.123 (Condition 5.2.2), the Permittee shall comply with the following requirements, as applicable:

- 3.2.1 For each cold cleaning degreaser, the Permittee shall comply with the applicable equipment and operating requirements of 35 IAC 215.182, 218.182, or 219.182.
- 3.2.2 For each particulate matter process emission unit, the Permittee shall comply with the applicable particulate matter emission limit of 35 IAC 212.321 or 212.322. For example, the particulate matter emissions from a process emission unit shall not exceed 0.55 pounds per hour if the emission unit's process weight rate is 100 pounds per hour or less, pursuant to 35 IAC 266.110.
- 3.2.3 For each organic material emission unit that uses organic material, e.g., a mixer or printing line, the Permittee shall comply with the applicable VOM emission limit of 35 IAC 215.301, 218.301, or 219.301, which requires that organic material emissions not exceed 8.0 pounds per hour or do not qualify as photochemically reactive material as defined in 35 IAC 211.4690.
- 3.3 Addition of Insignificant Activities
 - 3.3.1 The Permittee is not required to notify the Illinois EPA of additional insignificant activities present at the source of a type that is identified in Condition 3.1, until the renewal application for this permit is submitted, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.212(a).
 - 3.3.2 The Permittee must notify the Illinois EPA of any proposed addition of a new insignificant activity of a type addressed by 35 IAC 201.210(a) and 201.211 other than those identified in Condition 3.1, pursuant to Section 39.5(12)(b) of the Act.
 - 3.3.3 The Permittee is not required to notify the Illinois EPA of additional insignificant activities present at the source of a type identified in 35 IAC 201.210(b).

1.0 SIGNIFICANT EMISSION UNITS AT THIS SOURCE

Emission		Date	Emission Control
Unit	Description	Constructed	Equipment
Coal	Coal Receiving, Unloading,	Various -	Baghouses,
Handling	Conveying, Transferring, Radial	Post 1972	Enclosures, and
Equipment	Stacking, Storage, and Loading		Dust Suppressant
			Application System

5.0 OVERALL SOURCE CONDITIONS

5.1 Source Description

- 5.1.1 This permit is issued based on the source requiring a CAAPP permit as a major source of PM emissions.
- 5.1.2 This permit is issued based on the source not being a major source of HAPs.

5.2 Applicable Regulations

- 5.2.1 Specific emission units at this source are subject to particular regulations as set forth in Section 7 (Unit-Specific Conditions) of this permit.
- 5.2.2 In addition, emission units at this source are subject to the following regulations of general applicability:
 - a. No person shall cause or allow the emission of fugitive particulate matter from any process, including any material handling or storage activity, that is visible by an observer looking generally overhead at a point beyond the property line of the source unless the wind speed is greater than 40.2 kilometers per hour (25 miles per hour), pursuant to 35 IAC 212.301 and 212.314.

Compliance with this requirement is considered to be assured by the inherent nature of operations at this source, as demonstrated by historical operation.

b. No person shall cause or allow the emission of smoke or other particulate matter, with an opacity greater than 30 percent, into the atmosphere from any emission unit other than those emission units subject to the requirements of 35 IAC 212.122, pursuant to 35 IAC 212.123(a), except as allowed by 35 IAC 212.123(b) and 212.124.

5.2.3 Ozone Depleting Substances

The Permittee shall comply with the standards for recycling and emissions reduction of ozone depleting substances pursuant to 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart F, except as provided for motor vehicle air conditioners in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 82:

- a. Persons opening appliances for maintenance, service, repair, or disposal must comply with the required practices pursuant to 40 CFR 82.156.
- b. Equipment used during the maintenance, service, repair, or disposal of appliances must comply with the standards for recycling and recovery equipment pursuant to 40 CFR 82.158.

c. Persons performing maintenance, service, repair, or disposal of appliances must be certified by an approved technician certification program pursuant to 40 CFR 82.161.

5.2.4 Risk Management Plan

Should this stationary source, as defined in 40 CFR Section 68.3, become subject to the Accidental Release Prevention regulations in 40 CFR Part 68, then the owner or operator shall submit [40 CFR 68.215(a)(2)(i) and (ii)]:

- a. A compliance schedule for meeting the requirements of 40 CFR Part 68 by the date provided in 40 CFR 68.10(a); or
- b. A certification statement that the source is in compliance with all requirements of 40 CFR Part 68, including the registration and submission of the Risk Management Plan (RMP), as part of the annual compliance certification required by 40 CFR Part 70 or 71.
- 5.2.5 a. Should this stationary source become subject to a regulation under 40 CFR Parts 60, 61, or 63, or 35 IAC after the date issued of this permit, then the owner or operator shall, in accordance with the applicable regulation(s), comply with the applicable requirements by the date(s) specified and shall certify compliance with the applicable requirements of such regulation(s) as part of the annual compliance certification, as required by 40 CFR Part 70 or 71.
 - b. No later than upon the submittal for renewal of this permit, the owner or operator shall submit, as part of an application, the necessary information to address either the non-applicability of, or demonstrate compliance with all applicable requirements of any potentially applicable regulation which was promulgated after the date issued of this permit.

5.2.6 Episode Action Plan

- a. If the source is required to have an episode action plan pursuant to 35 TAC 244.142, the Permittee shall maintain at the source and have on file with the Illinois EPA a written episode action plan (plan) for reducing the levels of emissions during yellow alerts, red alerts, and emergencies, consistent with safe operating procedures. The plan shall contain the information specified in 35 TAC 244.144.
- b. The Permittee shall immediately implement the appropriate steps described in this plan should an air pollution alert or emergency be declared.

- c. If a change occurs at the source which requires a revision of the plan (e.g., operational change, change in the source contact person), a copy of the revised plan shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA for review within 30 days of the change. Such plans shall be further revised if disapproved by the Illinois EPA.
- d. For sources required to have a plan pursuant to 35 IAC 244.142, a copy of the original plan and any subsequent revisions shall be sent to:
 - i. Illinois EPA, Compliance Section; and
 - ii. For sources located in Cook County and outside of the city of Chicago: Cook County Department of Environmental Control; or
 - iii. For sources located within the city of Chicago: Chicago Department of Environmental Control.

5.2.7 CAM Plan

This stationary source has a pollutant-specific emissions unit that is subject to 40 CFR Part 64, Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) for Major Stationary Sources. The source must submit a CAM plan for each affected pollutant-specific emissions unit upon application for renewal of the initial CAAPP permit, or upon a significant modification to the CAAPP permit for the construction or modification of a large pollutant-specific emissions unit which has the potential post-control device emissions of the applicable regulated air pollutant that equals or exceeds major source threshold levels.

5.3 Non-Applicability of Regulations of Concern

None

5.4 Source-Wide Operational and Production Limits and Work Practices

In addition to the source-wide requirements in the Standard Permit Conditions in Section 9, the Permittee shall fulfill the following source-wide operational and production limitations and/or work practice requirements:

None

- 5.5 Source-Wide Emission Limitations
 - 5.5.1 Permitted Emissions for Fees

The annual emissions from the source, not considering insignificant activities as addressed by Section 3.0 of this permit, shall not exceed the following limitations. The overall source emissions shall be determined by adding emissions from all emission units. Compliance with these limits shall be determined on a calendar year basis. These limitations (Condition 5.5.1) are set for the purpose of establishing fees and are not federally enforceable.

Permitted Emissions of Regulated Pollutants

Pollutant	Tons/Year
Volatile Organic Material (VOM)	0.35
Sulfur Dioxide (SO ₂)	
Particulate Matter (PM)	374.55
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx)	
HAP, not included in VOM or PM	
Total	374.90

5.5.2 Emissions of Hazardous Air Pollutants

This permit is issued based on the emissions of HAPs as listed in Section 112(b) of the CAA not being equal to or exceeding 10 tons per year of a single HAP or 25 tons per year of any combination of such HAPs, so that this source is considered a minor source for HAPs.

5.5.3 Other Source-Wide Emission Limitations

Other source-wide emission limitations are not set for this source pursuant to either the federal rules for Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 40 CFR 52.21, Illinois EPA rules for Major Stationary Sources Construction and Modification, 35 IAC Part 203, or Section 502(b)(10) of the CAA. However, there may be unit specific emission limitations set forth in Section 7 of this permit pursuant to these rules.

5.6 General Recordkeeping Requirements

5.6.1 Emission Records

The Permittee shall maintain records of the following items for the source to demonstrate compliance with Condition 5.5.1, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act:

Total annual emissions on a calendar year basis for the emission units covered by Section 7 (Unit Specific Conditions) of this permit.

5.6.2 Records for Operating Scenarios

N/A

5.6.3 Retention and Availability of Records

a. All records and logs required by this permit shall be retained for at least five years from the date of entry (unless a longer retention period is specified by the particular recordkeeping provision herein), shall be kept at a location at the source that is readily accessible to the Illinois EPA or USEPA, and shall be made available for inspection and copying by the Illinois EPA or USEPA upon request.

- b. The Permittee shall retrieve and print, on paper during normal source office hours, any records retained in an electronic format (e.g., computer) in response to an Illinois EPA or USEPA request for records during the course of a source inspection.
- 5.7 General Reporting Requirements
 - 5.7.1 General Source-Wide Reporting Requirements

The Permittee shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA, Compliance Section of deviations of the source with the permit requirements as follows, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(f)(ii) of the Act. Reports shall describe the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective actions or preventive measures taken.

5.7.2 Annual Emissions Report

The annual emissions report required pursuant to Condition 9.7 shall contain emissions information for the previous calendar year.

- 5.8 General Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios N/A
- 5.9 General Compliance Procedures
 - 5.9.1 General Procedures for Calculating Emissions

Compliance with the source-wide emission limits specified in Condition 5.5 shall be based on the recordkeeping and reporting requirements of Conditions 5.6 and 5.7, and Compliance Procedures in Section 7 (Unit Specific Conditions) of this permit.

6.0 NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS PERMIT

7.0 UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

7.1 Coal Handling Equipment

7.1.1 Description

The Permittee transfers and stores coal in a series of operations, including railcar unloading, various conveyor transfers (with associated hoppers, diverters, and transfer points), storage piles (with radial stackers, feeders, silos, and standpipes), and barge loading. It should be noted that the facility does not do any crushing of coal at the facility. Particulate matter (PM) emissions associated with these processes are controlled by various measures including the moisture content of the coal, enclosures, dust collection devices, and dust suppressant application systems.

7.1.2 List of Emission Units and Air Pollution Control Equipment

Emission		Emission Control
Unit	Description	Equipment
Coal	Coal Receiving, Unloading,	Baghouses,
Handling	Conveying, Transferring,	Enclosures, and
Equipment	Radial Stacking, Storage,	Dust Suppressant
	and Loading	Application
		System

- 7.1.3 Applicability Provisions and Applicable Regulations
 - a. The "affected processes" for the purpose of these unit-specific conditions, are the process emission units described in Conditions 7.1.1 and 7.1.2.
 - b. The affected processes are subject to the emission limits identified in Condition 5.2.2.
 - c. The affected processes are subject to 35 IAC 212.321(a), which provides that:

No person shall cause or allow the emission of particulate matter into the atmosphere in any one hour period from any new process emission unit, either alone or in combination with the emission of particulate matter from all other similar process emission units for which construction or modification commenced on or after April 14, 1972, at a source or premises, exceeds the allowable emission rates specified in subsection (c) of 35 IAC 212.321 (see also Attachment 1) [35 IAC 212.321(a)].

- 7.1.4 Non-Applicability of Regulations of Concern
 - a. This permit is issued based on the affected processes not being subject to the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) for Coal Preparation Plants, 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Y, because the affected processes do

not meet the definition of a coal preparation plant which means any facility which prepares coal by breaking, crushing, screening, wet or dry cleaning, or thermal drying.

- 7.1.5 Operational and Production Limits and Work Practices
 - a. The Permittee shall implement and maintain control measures for the affected processes, such as enclosure, natural surface moisture, application of dust suppressant, and use of dust collection devices, that minimize visible emissions of particulate matter and provide a reasonable assurance of compliance with the applicable emission standards in Condition 7.1.3 pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(a) of the Act.
- 7.1.6 Emission Limitations

There are no specific emission limitations for this unit, however, there are source wide emission limitations in Condition 5.5 that include this unit.

7.1.7 Testing Requirements

None

7.1.8 Monitoring Requirements

None

7.1.9 Recordkeeping Requirements

In addition to the records required by Condition 5.6, the Permittee shall maintain records of the following items for the affected processes to demonstrate compliance with Conditions 5.5.1 and 7.1.3, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act:

- a. The Permittee shall keep a record, which shall be kept up to date, of the maximum operating capacity of the affected processes.
- b. A maintenance and repair log for the affected processes and air pollution control equipment. This log shall list the date and nature of maintenance and repair activities performed on the item of equipment.
- c. The Permittee shall maintain a record of the amount of coal received at the source, (tons/year).
- d. Emissions of Particulate Matter (PM) from the affected processes, with supporting calculations including documentation of the emission factors used, (ton/yr).

7.1.10 Reporting Requirements

The Permittee shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA, Compliance Section, of deviations of the affected process with the permit requirements as follows, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(f)(ii) of the Act. Reports shall describe the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective actions or preventive measures taken:

- a. Emissions from or operation of an affected process in excess of the limits specified in Condition 7.1.3 within 30 days of such occurrence.
- 7.1.11 Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios

The Permittee is authorized to make the following physical or operational change with respect to the affected processes without prior notification to the Illinois EPA or revision of this permit. This condition does not affect the Permittee's obligation to properly obtain a construction permit in a timely manner for any activity constituting construction or modification of the source, as defined in 35 IAC 201.102:

- a. Handling of solid fuels other than coal.
- b. Handling of coal or other solid fuels from different suppliers.
- c. Operation of additional dust suppressant systems and dust collection equipment.
- d. Operation of replacement dust suppression systems or dust collection equipment that is of equal or greater effectiveness in controlling PM emissions than the device(s) being replaced.

7.1.12 Compliance Procedures

- a. Compliance with Condition 7.1.3 is considered to be assured by the normal work practices and maintenance activities required in Condition 7.1.5 and the records required in Condition 7.1.9.
- b. Compliance with the emission limits in Conditions 5.5 shall be determined by using published emission factors, Illinois EPA approved stack test data, Illinois EPA approved measured emission factors, or approved manufacturer's data and the recordkeeping requirements in Condition 7.1.9.

8.0 GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS

8.1 Permit Shield

Pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(j) of the Act, the Permittee has requested and has been granted a permit shield. This permit shield provides that compliance with the conditions of this permit shall be deemed compliance with applicable requirements which were applicable as of the date the proposed permit for this source was issued, provided that either the applicable requirements are specifically identified within this permit, or the Illinois EPA, in acting on this permit application, has determined that other requirements specifically identified are not applicable to this source and this determination (or a concise summary thereof) is included in this permit.

This permit shield does not extend to applicable requirements which are promulgated after September 11, 2003 (the date of issuance of the draft permit) unless this permit has been modified to reflect such new requirements.

8.2 Applicability of Title IV Requirements (Acid Deposition Control)

This source is not an affected source under Title IV of the CAA and is not subject to requirements pursuant to Title IV of the CAA.

8.3 Emissions Trading Programs

No permit revision shall be required for increases in emissions allowed under any USEPA approved economic incentives, marketable permits, emissions trading, and other similar programs or processes for changes that are provided for elsewhere in this permit and that are authorized by the applicable requirement [Section 39.5(7)(o)(vii) of the Act].

- 8.4 Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios
 - 8.4.1 Changes Specifically Addressed by Permit

Physical or operational changes specifically addressed by the Conditions of this permit that have been identified as not requiring Illinois EPA notification may be implemented without prior notice to the Illinois EPA.

8.4.2 Changes Requiring Prior Notification

The Permittee is authorized to make physical or operational changes that contravene express permit terms without applying for or obtaining an amendment to this permit, provided that [Section 39.5(12)(a)(i) of the Act]:

a. The changes do not violate applicable requirements;

- b. The changes do not contravene federally enforceable permit terms or conditions that are monitoring (including test methods), recordkeeping, reporting, or compliance certification requirements;
- c. The changes do not constitute a modification under Title I of the CAA;
- d. Emissions will not exceed the emissions allowed under this permit following implementation of the physical or operational change; and
- e. The Permittee provides written notice to the Illinois EPA, Division of Air Pollution Control, Permit Section, at least 7 days before commencement of the change. This notice shall:
 - i. Describe the physical or operational change;
 - ii. Identify the schedule for implementing the physical or operational change;
 - iii. Provide a statement of whether or not any New Source Performance Standard (NSPS) is applicable to the physical or operational change and the reason why the NSPS does or does not apply;
 - iv. Provide emission calculations which demonstrate that the physical or operational change will not result in a modification; and
 - v. Provide a certification that the physical or operational change will not result in emissions greater than authorized under the Conditions of this permit.

8.5 Testing Procedures

Tests conducted to measure composition of materials, efficiency of pollution control devices, emissions from process or control equipment, or other parameters shall be conducted using standard test methods. Documentation of the test date, conditions, methodologies, calculations, and test results shall be retained pursuant to the recordkeeping procedures of this permit. Reports of any tests conducted as required by this permit or as the result of a request by the Illinois EPA shall be submitted as specified in Condition 8.6.

8.6 Reporting Requirements

8.6.1 Monitoring Reports

If monitoring is required by any applicable requirements or conditions of this permit, a report summarizing the required monitoring results, as specified in the conditions of this permit, shall be submitted to the Air Compliance Section of the Illinois EPA every six months as follows [Section 39.5(7)(f) of the Act]:

Monitoring Period

Report Due Date

January - June

September 1

July - December

March 1

All instances of deviations from permit requirements must be clearly identified in such reports. All such reports shall be certified in accordance with Condition 9.9.

8.6.2 Test Notifications

Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this permit, a written test plan for any test required by this permit shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA for review at least 60 days prior to the testing pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(a) of the Act. The notification shall include at a minimum:

- a. The name and identification of the affected unit(s);
- b. The person(s) who will be performing sampling and analysis and their experience with similar tests;
- c. The specific conditions under which testing will be performed, including a discussion of why these conditions will be representative of maximum emissions and the means by which the operating parameters for the source and any control equipment will be determined;
- d. The specific determination of emissions and operation which are intended to be made, including sampling and monitoring locations;
- e. The test method(s) which will be used, with the specific analysis method, if the method can be used with different analysis methods;
- f. Any minor changes in standard methodology proposed to accommodate the specific circumstances of testing, with justification; and
- g. Any proposed use of an alternative test method, with detailed justification.

8.6.3 Test Reports

Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this permit, the results of any test required by this permit shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA within 60 days of completion of the testing. The test report shall include at a minimum [Section 39.5(7)(e)(i) of the Act]:

- a. The name and identification of the affected unit(s);
- b. The date and time of the sampling or measurements;

- c. The date any analyses were performed;
- d. The name of the company that performed the tests and/or analyses;
- e. The test and analytical methodologies used;
- f. The results of the tests including raw data, and/or analyses including sample calculations;
- g. The operating conditions at the time of the sampling or measurements; and
- h. The name of any relevant observers present including the testing company's representatives, any Illinois EPA or USEPA representatives, and the representatives of the source.

8.6.4 Reporting Addresses

- a. The following addresses should be utilized for the submittal of reports, notifications, and renewals:
 - i. Illinois EPA Air Compliance Section
 Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Division of Air Pollution Control Compliance Section (#40)
 P.O. Box 19276
 Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276
 - ii. Illinois EPA Air Regional Field Office Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Division of Air Pollution Control 2009 Mall Street Collinsville, Illinois 62234
 - iii. Illinois EPA Air Permit Section (MC 11)
 Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Division of Air Pollution Control Permit Section
 P.O. Box 19506
 Springfield, Illinois 62794-9506
 - iv. USEPA Region 5 Air Branch

USEPA (AR - 17J) Air & Radiation Division 77 West Jackson Boulevard Chicago, Illinois 60604

b. Unless otherwise specified in the particular provision of this permit, reports shall be sent to the Illinois EPA - Air Compliance Section with a copy sent to the Illinois EPA - Air Regional Field Office.

8.7 Obligation to Comply with Title I Requirements

Any term, condition, or requirement identified in this permit by T1, T1R, or T1N is established or revised pursuant to 35 IAC Part 203 or 40 CFR 52.21 ("Title I provisions") and incorporated into this permit pursuant to both Section 39.5 and Title I provisions. Notwithstanding the expiration date on the first page of this permit, the Title I conditions remain in effect pursuant to Title I provisions until the Illinois EPA deletes or revises them in accordance with Title I procedures.

9.0 STANDARD PERMIT CONDITIONS

9.1 Effect of Permit

- The issuance of this permit does not release the Permittee from compliance with State and Federal regulations which are part of the Illinois State Implementation Plan, as well as with other applicable statutes and regulations of the United States or the State of Illinois or applicable ordinances, except as specifically stated in this permit and as allowed by law and rule [Section 39.5(7)(j)(iv) of the Act].
- 9.1.2 In particular, this permit does not alter or affect the following:
 - a. The provisions of Section 303 (emergency powers) of the CAA, including USEPA's authority under that Section;
 - b. The liability of an owner or operator of a source for any violation of applicable requirements prior to or at the time of permit issuance;
 - c. The applicable requirements of the acid rain program consistent with Section 408(a) of the CAA; and
 - d. The ability of USEPA to obtain information from a source pursuant to Section 114 (inspections, monitoring, and entry) of the CAA.
- 9.1.3 Notwithstanding the conditions of this permit specifying compliance practices for applicable requirements, any person (including the Permittee) may also use other credible evidence to establish compliance or noncompliance with applicable requirements.
- 9.2 General Obligations of Permittee
 - 9.2.1 Duty to Comply

The Permittee must comply with all terms and conditions of this permit. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the CAA and the Act, and is grounds for any or all of the following: enforcement action, permit termination, revocation and reissuance, modification, or denial of a permit renewal application [Section 39.5(7)(o)(i) of the Act].

The Permittee shall meet applicable requirements that become effective during the permit term in a timely manner unless an alternate schedule for compliance with the applicable requirement is established.

9.2.2 Duty to Maintain Equipment

The Permittee shall maintain all equipment covered under this permit in such a manner that the performance or operation of such equipment shall not cause a violation of applicable requirements.

9.2.3 Duty to Cease Operation

No person shall cause, threaten or allow the continued operation of any emission unit during malfunction or breakdown of the emission unit or related air pollution control equipment if such operation would cause a violation of an applicable emission standard, regulatory requirement, ambient air quality standard or permit limitation unless such malfunction or breakdown is allowed by a permit condition [Section 39.5(6)(c) of the Act].

9.2.4 Disposal Operations

The source shall be operated in such a manner that the disposal of air contaminants collected by the equipment operations, or activities shall not cause a violation of the Act or regulations promulgated thereunder.

9.2.5 Duty to Pay Fees

The Permittee must pay fees to the Illinois EPA consistent with the fee schedule approved pursuant to Section 39.5(18) of the Act, and submit any information relevant thereto [Section 39.5(7)(o)(vi) of the Act]. The check should be payable to "Treasurer, State of Illinois" and sent to: Fiscal Services Section, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276.

9.3 Obligation to Allow Illinois EPA Surveillance

Upon presentation of proper credentials and other documents, the Permittee shall allow the Illinois EPA, or an authorized representative to perform the following [Section 39.5(7)(a) and (p)(ii) of the Act and 415 ILCS 5/4]:

- a. Enter upon the Permittee's premises where an actual or potential emission unit is located; where any regulated equipment, operation, or activity is located or where records must be kept under the conditions of this permit;
- b. Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions of this permit;
- c. Inspect during hours of operation any sources, equipment (including monitoring and air pollution control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit;
- d. Sample or monitor any substances or parameters at any location:
 - At reasonable times, for the purposes of assuring permit compliance; or
 - ii. As otherwise authorized by the CAA, or the Act.

- e. Obtain and remove samples of any discharge or emission of pollutants authorized by this permit; and
- f. Enter and utilize any photographic, recording, testing, monitoring, or other equipment for the purposes of preserving, testing, monitoring, or recording any activity, discharge or emission at the source authorized by this permit.
- 9.4 Obligation to Comply With Other Requirements

The issuance of this permit does not release the Permittee from applicable State and Federal laws and regulations, and applicable local ordinances addressing subjects other than air pollution control.

9.5 Liability

9.5.1 Title

This permit shall not be considered as in any manner affecting the title of the premises upon which the permitted source is located.

9.5.2 Liability of Permittee

This permit does not release the Permittee from any liability for damage to person or property caused by or resulting from the construction, maintenance, or operation of the sources.

9.5.3 Structural Stability

This permit does not take into consideration or attest to the structural stability of any unit or part of the source.

9.5.4 Illinois EPA Liability

This permit in no manner implies or suggests that the Illinois EPA (or its officers, agents or employees) assumes any liability, directly or indirectly, for any loss due to damage, installation, maintenance, or operation of the source.

9.5.5 Property Rights

This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege [Section 39.5(7)(o)(iv) of the Act].

9.6 Recordkeeping

9.6.1 Control Equipment Maintenance Records

A maintenance record shall be kept on the premises for each item of air pollution control equipment. As a minimum, this record shall show the dates of performance and nature of preventative maintenance activities.

9.6.2 Records of Changes in Operation

A record shall be kept describing changes made at the source that result in emissions of a regulated air pollutant subject to an applicable requirement, but not otherwise regulated under this permit, and the emissions resulting from those changes [Section 39.5(12)(b)(iv) of the Act].

9.6.3 Retention of Records

- a. Records of all monitoring data and support information shall be retained for a period of at least 5 years from the date of the monitoring sample, measurement, report, or application. Support information includes all calibration and maintenance records, original strip-chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, and copies of all reports required by this permit [Section 39.5(7)(e)(ii) of the Act].
- b. Other records required by this permit shall be retained for a period of at least 5 years from the date of entry unless a longer period is specified by a particular permit provision.

9.7 Annual Emissions Report

The Permittee shall submit an annual emissions report to the Illinois EPA, Compliance Section no later than May 1 of the following year, as required by 35 IAC Part 254.

9.8 Requirements for Compliance Certification

Pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(p)(v) of the Act, the Permittee shall submit annual compliance certifications. The compliance certifications shall be submitted no later than May 1 or more frequently as specified in the applicable requirements or by permit condition. The compliance certifications shall be submitted to the Air Compliance Section, Air Regional Field Office, and USEPA Region 5 - Air Branch. The addresses for the submittal of the compliance certifications are provided in Condition 8.6.4 of this permit.

- a. The certification shall include the identification of each term or condition of this permit that is the basis of the certification; the compliance status; whether compliance was continuous or intermittent; the method(s) used for determining the compliance status of the source, both currently and over the reporting period consistent with the conditions of this permit.
- b. All compliance certifications shall be submitted to USEPA Region 5 in Chicago as well as to the Illinois EPA.
- c. All compliance reports required to be submitted shall include a certification in accordance with Condition 9.9.

9.9 Certification

Any document (including reports) required to be submitted by this permit shall contain a certification by a responsible official of the Permittee that meets the requirements of Section 39.5(5) of the Act [Section 39.5(7)(p)(i) of the Act]. An example Certification by a Responsible Official is included as an attachment to this permit.

9.10 Defense to Enforcement Actions

9.10.1 Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense

It shall not be a defense for the Permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit [Section 39.5(7)(o)(ii) of the Act].

9.10.2 Emergency Provision

- a. An emergency shall be an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with the technology-based emission limitations under this permit if the following conditions are met through properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence:
 - An emergency occurred as provided in Section 39.5(7)(k) of the Act and the Permittee can identify the cause(s) of the emergency. Normally, an act of God such as lightning or flood is considered an emergency;
 - ii. The permitted source was at the time being properly operated;
 - iii. The Permittee submitted notice of the emergency to the Illinois EPA within two working days of the time when emission limitations were exceeded due to the emergency. This notice must contain a detailed description of the emergency, any steps taken to mitigate emissions, and corrective actions taken; and
 - iv. During the period of the emergency the Permittee took all reasonable steps to minimize levels of emissions that exceeded the emission limitations, standards, or regulations in this permit.
- b. This provision is in addition to any emergency or upset provision contained in any applicable requirement. This provision does not relieve a Permittee of any reporting obligations under existing federal or state laws or regulations.

9.11 Permanent Shutdown

This permit only covers emission units and control equipment while physically present at the indicated source location(s). Unless this permit specifically provides for equipment relocation, this permit is void for the operation or activity of any item of equipment on the date it is removed from the permitted location(s) or permanently shut down. This permit expires if all equipment is removed from the permitted location(s), notwithstanding the expiration date specified on this permit.

9.12 Reopening and Reissuing Permit for Cause

9.12.1 Permit Actions

This permit may be modified, reopened, and reissued, for cause pursuant to Section 39.5(15) of the Act. The filing of a request by the Permittee for a permit modification, revocation, and reissuance, or of a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit condition [Section 39.5(7)(o)(iii) of the Act].

9.12.2 Reopening and Revision

This permit must be reopened and revised if any of the following occur [Section 39.5(15)(a) of the Act]:

- a. Additional requirements become applicable to the equipment covered by this permit and three or more years remain before expiration of this permit;
- b. Additional requirements become applicable to an affected source for acid deposition under the acid rain program;
- c. The Illinois EPA or USEPA determines that this permit contains a material mistake or inaccurate statement when establishing the emission standards or limitations, or other terms or conditions of this permit; and
- d. The Illinois EPA or USEPA determines that this permit must be revised to ensure compliance with the applicable requirements of the Act.

9.12.3 Inaccurate Application

The Illinois EPA has issued this permit based upon the information submitted by the Permittee in the permit application. Any misinformation, false statement or misrepresentation in the application shall be grounds for revocation under Section 39.5(15)(b) of the Act.

9.12.4 Duty to Provide Information

The Permittee shall furnish to the Illinois EPA, within a reasonable time specified by the Illinois EPA any information that the Illinois EPA may request in writing to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this permit, or to determine

compliance with this permit. Upon request, the Permittee shall also furnish to the Illinois EPA copies of records required to be kept by this permit, or for information claimed to be confidential, the Permittee may furnish such records directly to USEPA along with a claim of confidentiality [Section 39.5(7)(o)(v) of the Act].

9.13 Severability Clause

The provisions of this permit are severable, and should any one or more be determined to be illegal or unenforceable, the validity of the other provisions shall not be affected. The rights and obligations of the Permittee shall be construed and enforced as if this permit did not contain the particular provisions held to be invalid and the applicable requirements underlying these provisions shall remain in force [Section 39.5(7)(i) of the Act].

9.14 Permit Expiration and Renewal

The right to operate terminates on the expiration date unless the Permittee has submitted a timely and complete renewal application. For a renewal to be timely it must be submitted no later than 9 and no sconer than 12 months prior to expiration. The equipment may continue to operate during the renewal period until final action is taken by the Illinois EPA, in accordance with the original permit conditions [Section 39.5(5)(1), (n), and (o) of the Act].

10.0 ATTACHMENTS

- 10.1 Attachment 1
- Emissions of Particulate Matter from New Process Emission Units
- 10.1.1 Process Emission Units for Which Construction or Modification Commenced On or After April 14, 1972
 - a. No person shall cause or allow the emission of particulate matter into the atmosphere in any one hour period from any new process emission unit, either alone or in combination with the emission of particulate matter from all other similar process emission units for which construction or modification commenced on or after April 14, 1972, at a source or premises, exceeds the allowable emission rates specified in subsection (c) of 35 IAC 212.321 [35 IAC 212.321(a)].
 - b. Interpolated and extrapolated values of the data in subsection (c) of 35 IAC 212.321 shall be determined by using the equation [35 IAC 212.321(b)]:

 $E = A (P)^B$

Where:

P = Process weight rate

E = Allowable emission rate

i. Up to process weight rates of 408 Mg/hr (450 T/hr):

	Metric	English
P	Mg/hr	T/hr
E	kg/hr	lb/hr
A	1.214	2.54
В	0.534	0.534

ii. For process weight rate greater than or equal to 408 Mg/hr (450 T/hr):

	Metric	English
P	Mg/hr	T/hr
E	kg/hr	lb/hr
A	11.42	24.8
В	0.16	0.16

c. Limits for Process Emission Units For Which Construction or Modification Commenced On or After April 19, 1972 [35 IAC 212.321(c)]:

Metric		English	
P	E	P	E
Mg/hr	kg/hr	T/hr	lb/hr
0.05	0.25	0.05	0.55
0.1	0.29	0.10	0.77

Metric		English	
P	E	P	E
Mg/hr	kg/hr	T/hr	lb/hr
0.2	0.42	0.2	1.10
0.3	0.64	0.30	1.35
0.4	0.74	0.40	1.58
0.5	0.84	0.50	1.75
0.7	1.00	0.75	2.40
0.9	1.15	1.00	2.60
1.8	1.66	2.00	3.70
2.7	2.1	3.00 .	4.60
3.6	2.4	4.00	5.35
4.5	2.7	5.00	6.00
9.0	3.9	10.00	8.70
13.0	4.8	15.00	10.80
18.0	5.7	20.00	12.50
23.0	6.5	25.00	14.00
27.0	7.1	30.00	15.60
32.0	7.7	35.00	17.00
36.0	8.2	40.00	18.20
41.0	8.8	45.00	19.20
45.0	9.3	50.00	20.50
90.0	13.4	100.00	29.50
140.0	17.0	150.00	37.00
180.0	19.4	200.00	43.00
230.0	22.0	250.00	48.50
270.0	24.0	300.00	53.00
320.0	26.0	350.00	58.00
360.0	28.0	400.00	62.00
408.0	30.1	450.00	66.00
454.0	30.4	500.00	67.00

10.2 Attachment 2 - Example Certification by a Responsible Official

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

Signature:		
Name:	 	
Official Title:		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Telephone No.:		
Date Signed:		

10.3 Attachment 3- Guidance on Revising This Permit

The Permittee must submit an application to the Illinois EPA using the appropriate revision classification in accordance with Sections 39.5(13) and (14) of the Act and 35 IAC 270.302. Specifically, there are currently three classifications for revisions to a CAAPP permit. These are:

- Administrative Permit Amendment;
- Minor Permit Modification; and
- 3. Significant Permit Modification.

The Permittee must determine, request, and submit the necessary information to allow the Illinois EPA to use the appropriate procedure to revise the CAAPP permit. A brief explanation of each of these classifications follows.

1. Administrative Permit Amendment

- Corrects typographical errors;
- Identifies a change in the name, address, or phone number of any person identified in the permit, or provides a similar minor administrative change at the source;
- Requires more frequent monitoring or reporting by the Permittee;
- Allows for a change in ownership or operational control of the source where no other change in the permit is necessary, provided that a written agreement containing a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage, and liability between the current and new Permittees has been submitted to the Illinois EPA. This shall be handled by completing form 272-CAAPP, REQUEST FOR OWNERSHIP CHANGE FOR CAAPP PERMIT; or
- Incorporates into the CAAPP permit a construction permit, provided the conditions of the construction permit meet the requirements for the issuance of CAAPP permits.

2. Minor Permit Modification

- Do not violate any applicable requirement;
- Do not involve significant changes to existing monitoring, reporting, or recordkeeping requirements in the permit;
- Do not require a case-by-case determination of an emission limitation or other standard, or a source-specific determination of ambient impacts, or a visibility or increment analysis;

- Do not seek to establish or change a permit term or condition for which there is no corresponding underlying requirement and which avoids an applicable requirement to which the source would otherwise be subject. Such terms and conditions include:
 - A federally enforceable emissions cap assumed to avoid classification as a modification under any provision of Title I of the CAA; and
 - An alternative emissions limit approved pursuant to regulations promulgated under Section 112(i)(5) of the CAA.
- Are not modifications under any provision of Title I of the CAA;
- Are not required to be processed as a significant permit modification; and
- Modifications involving the use of economic incentives, marketable permits, emissions trading, and other similar approaches.

An application for a minor permit modification shall include the following:

- A description of the change, the emissions resulting from the change, and any new applicable requirements that will apply if the change occurs;
- The source's suggested draft permit/conditions;
- Certification by a responsible official that the proposed modification meets the criteria for use of minor permit modification procedures and a request that such procedures be used; and
- Information as contained on form 271-CAAPP, MINOR PERMIT MODIFICATION FOR CAAPP PERMIT for the Illinois EPA to use to notify USEPA and affected States.

Significant Permit Modification

- Applications that do not qualify as either minor permit modifications or as administrative permit amendments;
- Applications requesting a significant change in existing monitoring permit terms or conditions;
- Applications requesting a relaxation of reporting or recordkeeping requirements; and
- Cases in which, in the judgment of the Illinois EPA, action on an application for modification would require decisions to be made on technically complex issues.

An application for a significant permit modification shall include the following:

 A detailed description of the proposed change(s), including all physical changes to equipment, changes in the method of operation, changes in emissions of each pollutant, and any new applicable requirements which will apply as a result of the proposed change.
 Note that the Permittee need only submit revised forms for equipment and operations that will be modified.

The Illinois EPA requires the information on the following appropriate forms to be submitted in accordance with the proper classification:

- Form 273-CAAPP, REQUEST FOR ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT AMENDMENT FOR CAAPP PERMIT; or
- Form 271-CAAPP, MINOR PERMIT MODIFICATION FOR CAAPP PERMIT; or
- Form 200-CAAPP, APPLICATION FOR CAAPP PERMIT (for significant modification).

Application forms can be obtained from the Illinois EPA website at http://www.epa.state.il.us/air/forms.

Note that the request to revise the permit must be certified for truth, accuracy, and completeness by a responsible official.

Note that failure to submit the required information may require the Illinois EPA to deny the application. The Illinois EPA reserves the right to require that additional information be submitted as needed to evaluate or take final action on applications pursuant to Section 39.5(5)(g) of the Act and 35 IAC 270.305.

10.4 Attachment 4

Form 199-CAAPP, Application For Construction Permit (For CAAPP Sources Only)



Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
Division Of Air Pollution Control -- Permit Section
P.O. Box 19506
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9506

				For	Illinois	EPA use only	
۸n	plication For Cons	struction	I.D.	number:			
-	mit (For CAAPP Sou		Peri	Permit number:			
			Date	e received	:		
This form	n is to be used by CAAPP sources ry information and completed CAA	to supply informati	on neces	sary to obtai	n a construct	tion permit. Please attach other plect.	
		Source	inform	nation			
1.	Source name:		•	sel.			
2.	Source street address:						
3.	City:				4.	Zip code:	
5.	is the source located with	in city limits?			☐ Ye	es 🗌 No	
6.	Township name:	7. Cour	nty:		8.	I.D. number:	
			TI .				
	**************************************	m Owner	linfelli	neillona			
9.	Name:	1 - 12 - 12					
10.	Address:		E 3	5. 17			
11.	City:	12. State:			13.	Zlp code:	
		Alnioimation	Mari	iferensi	nom ow	nen)	
14.	Name						
15.	Address:						
16.	City:	17. State:			18.	Zip code:	
		o #Algolleen		411 - 1411 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 - 141 -			
19.	Who is the applicant? ☐ Owner ☐ Operate			wner	ence to: (c	check one) tor	
21.	Attention name and/or title	e for written cor	respon	dence:			
22.	Technical contact person	for application:		23.	Contact pe	erson's telephone number:	

This Agency is authorized to require and you must disclose this information under 415 ILCS 5/39. Fallure to do so could result in the application being denied and penalties under 415 ILCS 5 et seq. It is not necessary to use this form in providing this information. This form has been approved by the forms management center.

Printed on Recycled Paper 199-CAAPP

4						
Ĺ	· · · · · ·	Summary Of Application Contents	114 S.V	gi, fa		
ľ	24.	Does the application address whether the proposed project would		Yes	□ No	
l		constitute a new major source or major modification under each of the	LJ	103	L 140	
		following programs:				
1		a) Non-attainment New Source Review – 35 IAC Part 203; b) Provention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) 40 CER 53 31;				
l		 b) Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) – 40 CFR 52.21; c) Hazardous Air Pollutants: Regulations Governing Constructed or 				
l		Reconstructed Major Sources – 40 CFR Part 63?				
ŀ	25.	Does the application identify and address all applicable emissions				
		standards, including those found in the following:	\Box	Yes	☐ No	
		a) Board Emission Standards – 35 IAC Chapter I, Subtitle B;				
		b) Federal New Source Performance Standards – 40 CFR Part 60;				
		c) Federal Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants – 40 CFR Parts 61				
Ļ		and 63?				
l	26.	Does the application include a process flow diagram(s) showing all		Yes	☐ No	
ļ		emission units and control equipment, and their relationship, for which a permit is being sought?	_			
ŀ	27.	Does the application include a complete process description for the				
l	21.	emission units and control equipment for which a permit is being sought?		Yes	□ No	
ŀ	28.	Does the application include the information as contained in completed		.,		
l		CAAPP forms for all appropriate emission units and air pollution control		Yes	r	Vo
١		equipment, listing all applicable requirements and proposed exemptions				
l		from otherwise applicable requirements, and identifying and describing				
l		any outstanding legal actions by either the USEPA or the Illinois EPA?				
		Note: The use of "APC" application forms is not appropriate for				
ı		applications for CAAPP sources. CAAPP forms should be used			•	
ŀ	29.	to supply information. If the application contains TRADE SECRET information, has such				_
l	23.	information been properly marked and claimed, and have two separate		Yes	☐ No	
I		copies of the application suitable for public inspection and notice been				
l		submitted, in accordance with applicable rules and regulations?	_			
l					pplicable	} ,
ŀ				No TE		
					nation in	
					pplication	3
Į.	Note	1: Answering "No" to any of the above may result in the application being	deeme			<u> </u>
	11010	1. Allowering the to dry of the above may reduct in the application being	4000	, a 111001	np.oto.	
		The Signature Block was training				
l	STATISTICAL	This certification must be signed by a responsible official. Applications wi	thout a	slane	d	No.
١		certification will be returned as incomplete.				
İ	30.	I certify under penalty of law that, based on information and belief formed	after r	easona	able	
ı		inquiry, the statements and information contained in this application are tr	ue, ac	curate	and	
ı		complete.				
		Authorized Signature:				
	В١					
		AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE TITLE OF	SIGNAT	ORY	-	_
						**
		TYPED OR PRINTED NAME OF SIGNATORY	DATE	_/		•
		TELEVENTER INFORME OF CICIONIUM I	473115			

Note 2: An operating permit for the construction/modification permitted in a construction permit must be obtained by applying for the appropriate revision to the source's CAAPP permit, if necessary.

10.5 Attachment 5 - Guidance on Renewing This Permit

Timeliness - Pursuant to Section 39.5(5)(n) of the Act and 35 IAC 270.301(d), a source must submit to the Illinois EPA a complete CAAPP application for the renewal of a CAAPP permit not later than 9 months before the date of permit expiration of the existing CAAPP permit in order for the submittal to be deemed timely. Note that the Illinois EPA typically sends out renewal notices approximately 18 months prior to the expiration of the CAAPP permit.

The CAAPP application must provide all of the following information in order for the renewal CAAPP application to be deemed complete by the Illinois EPA:

- A completed form 200-CAAPP, APPLICATION FOR CAAPP PERMIT.
- A completed compliance certification for the source. For this purpose, the Illinois EPA will accept a copy of the most recent form 401-CAAPP, ANNUAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION submitted to the Illinois EPA.
- 3. If this is the first time this permit is being renewed and this source has not yet addressed CAM, the application should contain the information on form 464-CAAPP, COMPLIANCE ASSURANCE MONITORING (CAM) PLAN.
- 4. Information addressing any outstanding transfer agreement pursuant to the ERMS.
- 5. a. If operations of an emission unit or group of emission units remain unchanged and are accurately depicted in previous submittals, the application may contain a letter signed by a responsible official that requests incorporation by reference of existing information previously submitted and on file with the Illinois EPA. The boxes should be marked yes on form 200-CAAPP, APPLICATION FOR CAAPP PERMIT, as existing information is being incorporated by reference.
 - b. If portions of current operations are not as described in previous submittals, then in addition to the information above for operations that remain unchanged, the application must contain the necessary information on all changes, e.g., discussion of changes, new or revised CAAPP forms, and a revised fee form 292-CAAPP, FEE DETERMINATION FOR CAAPP PERMIT, if necessary.

The Illinois EPA will review all applications for completeness and timeliness. If the renewal application is deemed both timely and complete, the source shall continue to operate in accordance with the terms and conditions of its CAAPP permit until final action is taken on the renewal application.

Notwithstanding the completeness determination, the Illinois EPA may request additional information necessary to evaluate or take final action on the CAAPP renewal application. If such additional information affects your allowable emission limits, a revised form

292-CAAPP, FEE DETERMINATION FOR CAAPP PERMIT must be submitted with the requested information. The failure to submit to the Illinois EPA the requested information within the time frame specified by the Illinois EPA, may force the Illinois EPA to deny your CAAPP renewal application pursuant to Section 39.5 of the Act.

Application forms may be obtained from the Illinois EPA website at http://www.epa.state.il.us/air/forms.html.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact a permit analyst at 217/782-2113.

Mail renewal applications to:

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Division of Air Pollution Control Permit Section (MC 11) P.O. Box 19506 Springfield, Illinois 62794-9506

ATTACHMENT B



ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

1021 North Grand Avenue East, P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 • (217) 782-2829 James R. Thompson Center, 100 West Randolph, Suite 11-300, Chicago, IL 60601 • (312) 814-6026

PAT QUINN, GOVERNOR

DOUGLAS P. SCOTT, DIRECTOR

September 22, 2010

618/993-7200

Ohio Power Company P.O. Box 870 Metropolis, IL 62960

Re:

Ohio Power Company Cook Coal Terminal

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Final Renewed Permit

Gentlemen:

Attached is the final renewed NPDES Permit for your discharge. The Permit as issued covers discharge limitations, monitoring, and reporting requirements. The failure of you to meet any portion of the Permit could result in civil and/or criminal penalties. The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency is ready and willing to assist you in interpreting any of the conditions of the Permit as they relate specifically to your discharge.

The Permit as issued is effective as of the date indicated on the first page of the Permit. You have the right to appeal any conditions of the Permit to the Illinois Pollution Control Board within a 35 day period following the issuance date.

Should you have questions concerning the Permit, please contact the undersigned at 618/993-7200.

Respectfully,

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Ronald E. Morse, Manager

Mine Pollution Control Program

Bureau of Water

REM:LDC:

Enclosure: Final Permit

cc: IDNR/Office of Mines and Minerals/Land Reclamation/with Enclosure

IDNR/Division of Water Resources/with Enclosure

Larry Crislip, Marion Region/Mine Pollution Control Program/with Enclosure

BOW/DWPC/CAS BOW/DWPC/Records

GERPDC

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency

Division of Water Pollution Control

1021 North Grand Avenue, East

P.O. Box 19276

Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM

Renewed and Modified NPDES Permit

Expiration Date: August 31, 2015

Issue Date: September 22, 2010 Effective Date: September 22, 2010

Name and Address of Permittee:

Ohio Power Company P.O. Box 24400 Canton, Old 44701

Facility Name and Address:

Ohio Power Company Cook Coal Terminal P.O. Box 870 Metropolis, IL 62960 4.5 miles South of Joppa, Illinois (Massac County)

Discharge Number and Classification:

001

Sanitary Wastewater

002

Alkaline Mine Drainage

004ES

Stormwater Discharge

005ES

Stormwater Discharge

Receiving waters

Ohio River

Rocky Branch tributary to Ohio River

Ohio River

Rocky Branch tributary to Ohio River

In compliance with the provisions of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act, Subtitle C and/or Subtitle D Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Pollution Control Board, and the Clean Water Act, the above-named permittee is hereby authorized to discharge at the above location to the above-named receiving stream in accordance with the standard conditions and attachments herein.

Permittee is not authorized to discharge after the above expiration date. In order to receive authorization to discharge beyond the expiration date, the permittee shall submit the proper application as required by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) not later than 180 days prior to the expiration date.

> Ronald E. Morse, Manager Mine Pollution Control Program

Bureau of Water

REM:LDC:5577c/06-21-10

NPDES Coal Mine Permit

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring

From the effective date of this Permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge shall be monitored and limited at all times as follows:

Outfall: 001 (Sanitary Wastewater)

						Para	meters					
	Total Su Sol (comp			BOD ₆ (composite)				На	Fecal Coliform		Residual hiorine	_
	Limits (day)	Conce Li	ntration mits ng/l}		Limits /day)	Lir	ntration nits ng/l)	(S.U.)	Conform	Load Limits (lbs/day)	Concentration Limits (mg/l)	Flow (MGD)
30 day average	daily maximum	30 day average	da:ly maximum	30 day average	daily maximum	30 day average	dally maximum]	daily maximum	daily maximum	daily maximum	
1.88	3.75	30.0	60.0	1.88	3.75	30,0	60.0	6.0-9.0	≤400/100 ml	0.047	0.75	Measure When Sampling

ſ	Ammonia Nitrogen (composite)									
ı	Marc	:h-Mav	June	-August	Septemb	er-October	Novemb	er-February		
- 1	(n	ng/l)	(mg/i)		(n	ng/l)	(mg/l)			
	30 day	daily	30 day	daily	30 day	daily	30 day	daily		
	average	maximum	average maximum		egereva	maximum	average	maximum		
1	2.6	15.0	2.1	15.0	2.6	15.0	5.0	14.4		

^{**} A minimum of three (3) grab samples per month shall be collected and analyzed for the indicated parameter; however, such sampling and analysis is required only if and/or when a discharge occurs from Outfall 001. No more than one (1) sample shall be collected during any individual monitoring event.

NPDES Coal Mine Permit

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring

From the effective date of this Permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge shall be monitored and limited at all times as follows:

Outfail*: 002 (Alkaline Mine Drainage)

							Parame	ters					
Discharge Condition	Suspend (m	otal led Solids g/l)	(m	(total) g/l)	pH** Alkalinity/		Sulfata (mg/l)	Chloride (mg/l)	Mn (iotal) (mg/l)	Hardness	Marcury see Special Condition	Flow (MGD)	Settleeble Solids (ml/l)
	30 day average	dally maximum	30 day average	daily maximum					***		No. 14		(111117
ı,	35	70	3.5	7.0	6.5-9.0	Alk.>Acid	1189	500	1.0	Monitor only	Monitor only	Measure When Sampling	<u>-</u>
н	1023		7	-	6.0-9.0	-	1189	500	-	Monitor only	•	Measure When Sampling	0.5
In	-		-	-	6.0-9.0	-	1189	500		Monitor only	-	Measure When Sampling	-
IV	35	70	3.5	7.0	6.5-9.0	Alk.>Acid	1189	500	1.0	Monitor only	Manitor anly	Measure When Sampling	-

- 1 Dry weather discharge (base flow or mine pumpage) from the outfall.
- II In accordance with 35 III. Adm. Code 406.110(a), any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused by precipitation within any 24-hour period less than or equal to the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation event (or snowmelt or equivalent volume) shall comply with the indicated limitations instead of those in 35 III. Adm. Code 406.106(b). The 10-year, 24-hour precipitation event for this area is considered to be 5.21 inches.
- III In accordance with 35 III. Adm. Code 406.110(d), any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused by precipitation within any 24-hour period greater than the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation event (or snowmelt of equivalent volume) shall comply with the indicated limitations instead of those in 35 III. Adm. Code 406.106(b).
- IV Discharges continuing 24 hours after cessation of precipitation event that resulted in discharge. For outfalls which have no allowed mixing, monitoring requirements and permit limitations of Discharge Condition IV are identical to Discharge Condition I to which the outfall discharge has reverted.

Sampling during all Discharge Conditions shall be performed utilizing the grab sampling method.

*** There shall be a minimum of nine (9) samples collected during the quarter when the pond is discharging. Of these 9 samples, a minimum of one sample each month shall be taken during either Discharge Condition I or IV should such discharge condition occur. A "no flow" situation is not considered to be a sample of the discharge. In the event that Discharge Conditions II and/or III occur, grab sample of each discharge caused by the above precipitation events (Discharge Conditions II and/or III) shall be taken and analyzed for the parameters identified in the table above during at least 3 separate events each quarter. For quarters in which there are less than 3 such precipitation events resulting in discharges, a grab sample of the discharge shall be required whenever such precipitation event(s) occur(s). Should a sufficient number of discharge events occur during the quarter, the remaining three (3) quarterly samples may be taken during any of the Discharge Conditions described above.

The water quality standards for sulfate and chloride must be met in discharges from the above referenced outfall as well as in the receiving stream.

^{*} The Permittee is subject to the limitations, and monitoring and reporting requirements of Special Condition No. 12 for the discharges from Outfall 002 and the unnamed tributary to Rocky Branch receiving such discharges.

^{**} No discharge is allowed from any above referenced permitted outfall during "low flow" or "no flow" conditions in the receiving stream unless such discharge meets the water quality standards of 35 III. Adm. Code 302.204 for pH.

NPDES Coal Mine Permit

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring

Upon completion of Special Condition 9 and approval from the Agency, the effluent of the following discharge shall be monitored and limited at all times as follows:

Outfall*: 002 (Reclamation Area Drainage)

	Parameters									
Discharge Condition	pH** (S.U.)	Sulfate (mg/l)	Chloride (mg/l)	Hardness	Flow (MGD)	Settleable Solids (ml/l)				
i	6.5-9.0	1189	500	Monitor only	Measure When Sampling	0.5				
	6.0-9.0	1189	500	Monitor only	Measure When Sampling	0.5				
III	6.0-9.0	1189	500	Monitor only	Measure When Sampling					
IV	6.5-9.0	1189	500	Monitor only	Measure When Sampling	0.5				

- I Dry weather discharge (base flow, if present) from the outfall.
- II In accordance with 35 III. Adm. Code 406.109(b), any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused by precipitation within any 24-hour period less than or equal to the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation event (or snowmelt or equivalent volume) shall comply with the indicated limitations. The 10-year, 24-hour precipitation event for this area is considered to be 5.21 inches.
- III In accordance with 35 III. Adm. Code 406.109(c), any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused by precipitation within any 24-hour period greater than the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation event (or snowmelt of equivalent volume) shall comply with the indicated limitations instead of those in 35 III. Adm. Code 406.109(b).
- IV Discharges continuing 24 hours after cessation of precipitation event that resulted in discharge. For reclamation area discharges, monitoring requirements and permit limitations of Discharge Condition IV are identical to Discharge Condition I to which the outfall discharge has reverted.

Sampling during all Discharge Conditions shall be performed utilizing the grab sampling method. A "no flow" situation is not considered to be a sample of the discharge.

*** One sample per month (1/month) shall be collected if and/or when a discharge occurs under either Discharge Condition I, II or IV and analyzed for the parameters identified in the table above. In addition, at least three (3) grab samples shall be taken each quarter from separate precipitation events under Discharge Condition III and analyzed for parameters indicated in the above table. For quarters in which there are less than 3 such precipitation events, a grab sample of the discharge shall be required whenever such precipitation event(s) occur(s).

The water quality standards for sulfate and chloride must be met in discharges from the above referenced outfall as well as in the receiving stream.

^{*} The Permittee is subject to the limitations, and monitoring and reporting requirements of Special Condition No. 12 for the discharges from Outfall 002 and the unnamed tributary to Rocky Branch receiving such discharges.

^{**} No discharge is allowed from any above referenced permitted outfall during "low flow" or "no flow" conditions in the receiving stream unless such discharge meets the water quality standards of 35 III. Adm. Code 302.204 for pH.

NPDES Coal Mine Permit

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring

Upon completion of Special Condition No. 10 and approval from the Agency, the effluent of the following discharge shall be monitored and limited at all times as follows:

Outfalls: 002 (Stormwater Discharge)

Par	rameters
pH* (S.U.)	Settleable Solids (ml/l)
6.0-9.0	0.5

Stormwater discharge monitoring is subject to the following reporting requirements:

Analysis of samples must be submitted with second quarter Discharge Monitoring Reports.

Annual stormwater monitoring is required for all discharges until approval to cease such monitoring is obtained from the Agency.

^{*} No discharge is allowed from any above referenced permitted outfalls during "low flow" or "no flow" conditions in the receiving stream unless such discharge meets the water quality standards of 35 III. Adm. Code 302.204 for pH.

^{**} One (1) sample per year shall be collected and analyzed for the indicated parameter; however, such sampling and analysis is required only if and/or when a discharge occurs from the individual Outfall(s) identified above.

NPDES Coal Mine Permit

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring

From the effective date of this Permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge shall be monitored and limited at all times as follows:

Outfalls: 004ES, 005ES (Stormwater Discharge)

Param	neters
pH* (S.U.) **	Settleable Solids (ml/l) **
6.0-9.0	0.5

Stormwater discharge monitoring is subject to the following reporting requirements:

Analysis of samples must be submitted with second quarter Discharge Monitoring Reports.

Annual stormwater monitoring is required for all discharges until approval to cease such monitoring is obtained from the Agency.

No discharge is allowed from any above referenced permitted outfalls during "low flow" or "no flow" conditions in the receiving stream unless such discharge meets the water quality standards of 35 III. Adm. Code 302.204 for pH.

^{**} One (1) sample per year shall be collected and analysed for the indicated parameter; however, such sampling and analysis is required only if and/or when a discharge occurs from the individual Outfall(s) identified above.

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Construction Authorization No. 9448-99

C. A. Date: August 11, 2010

Authorization is hereby granted to the above designee to construct and operate the coal storage and transfer facility described as follows:

The coal storage and transfer facility contain 63.27 acres located in Sections 28 and 29, Township 15 South, Range 4 East, Massac County, Illinois.

Included on this site is office and maintenance buildings, parking areas and access roads, coal silos, coal storage areas, rail roads, rotary rall car dump, various belt lines for coal transport, storage and barge loading, sedimentation ponds and sanitary waste water treatment.

An additional area of 14.7 acres is incorporated into this Permit for additional coal storage as identified and described in IEPA Log Nos. 8039-00, 9290-09 and 9290-09-A. This additional area is included in the total permit acreage cited above. Runoff from this area will be directed to Basin B as depicted in 8039-00 and pumped to the West Settling Basin as described below.

Surface drainage is controlled by three (3) sedimentation basins with a single primary discharge identified as Outfall 002, and two (2) emergency stormwater discharges identified as Outfalls 004ES and 005ES. Internal collection basins identified as Pond 003 (Basin A), East Settling Pond and Basin B incorporate pump discharges to West Settling Pond. The West Settling Pond incorporates a pump discharge thru a treatment facility to Pond and Outfall 002. Treatment of the inflow to Pond 002 is performed as needed to control suspended solids levels. A Commercial Water Clarification Aid identified as ULTRION (R) 8187 may be utilized for the treatment of the Pond 002 Inflow. Internal basins, East Settling Pond and West Settling Pond, include emergency stormwater discharge structures identified as Outfalls 004ES and 005ES, respectively.

As the discharge structure from Pond 003 has been removed with all runoff being pumped to the West Settling Pond with ultimate discharge thru Outfall 002, Outfall 003 is hereby deleted from this Permit.

Outfall 001 is the discharge from the sanitary wastewater treatment facility which consists of a packaged extended aeration plant, aerated sludge holding tank, two (2) one-day settling ponds and chlorination. Final discharge from the sanitary wastewater treatment facility (Outfall 001) is to the Ohio River. The design average flow for this facility is 7500 GPD, Design P.E. = 75.

The locations and receiving streams of the Outfalls at this facility are as follows:

Outfall	Latitude		Longitude			Receiving Waters	
Number	DEG	MIN	SEC	DEG	MIN	SEC	Traceiving vvalcis
001	37°	10'	38"	88°	46'	36"	Unnamed tributary to Ohio River
002	37°	10'	58"	88°	46'	50"	Unnamed tributary to Rocky Branch to Ohio River
004ES	37°	10'	39"	88*	46'	33"	Unnamed tributary to Ohio River
005ES	37°	11'	00"	88°	46'	49"	Unnamed tributary to Rocky Branch to Ohio River

Upon abandonment, all stockpiled coal shall be removed and the storage area covered with four (4) feet of non-toxic cover material. Any sludge accumulated in the treatment facility shall also be covered. The abandonment plan shall otherwise be completed in accordance with 35 Iil. Adm. Code 405.109.

This Construction Authorization supersedes and replaces Construction Authorization No. 6165-92 previously issued for the herein permitted facilities and activities.

All water remaining upon abandonment must meet the requirements of 35 III. Adm. Code 406.202. For the constituents not covered by Parts 302 or 303, all water remaining upon abandonment must meet the requirements of 35 III. Adm. Code 406.106.

This Authorization is issued subject to the following Condition(s). If such Condition(s) require(s) additional or revised facilities, satisfactory engineering plan documents must be submitted to this Agency for review and approval to secure issuance of a Supplemental Authorization to Construct.

 If any statement or representation is found to be incorrect, this permit may be revoked and the permittee thereupon waives all rights thereunder.

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Construction Authorization No. 9448-99

C. A. Date: August 11, 2010

- 2. The issuance of this permit (a) shall not be considered as in any manner affecting the title of the premises upon which the mine or mine refuse area is to be located; (b) does not release the permittee from any liability for damage to person or property caused by or resulting from the installation, maintenance or operation of the proposed facilities; (c) does not take into consideration the structural stability of any units or parts of the project; and (d) does not release the permittee from compliance with other applicable statutes of the State of Illinois, or with applicable local laws, regulations or ordinances.
- Final plans, specifications, application and supporting documents as submitted by the person indicated on Page 1 as approved shall constitute part of this permit and are identified by Log Nos. 8039-00, 9290-09 and 9290-09-A in the records of the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency.
- 4. There shall be no deviations from the approved plans and specifications unless revised plans, specifications and application shall first have been submitted to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency and a supplemental permit issued.
- 5. The permit holder shall notify the Environmental Protection Agency (217/782-3637) immediately of an emergency at the mine or mine refuse area which causes or threatens to cause a sudden discharge of contaminants into the waters of Illinois and shall immediately undertake necessary corrective measures as required by 35 III. Adm. Code 405.111. (217/782-3637 for calls between the hours of 5:00 p.m. to 8:30 a.m. and on weekends.)
- 6. The termination of an NPDES discharge monitoring point or cessation of monitoring of an NPDES discharge is not authorized by this Agency until the permittee submits adequate justification to show what alternate treatment is provided or that untreated drainage will meet applicable effluent and water quality standards.
- 7. Initial construction activities in areas to be disturbed shall be for collection and treatment facilities only. Prior to the start of other activities, surface drainage controls shall be constructed and operated to avoid violations of the Act or Subtitle D. At such time as runoff water is collected in the sedimentation pond, a sample shall be collected and analyzed, for the parameters designated as 1M through 15M under Part 5-C of Form 2C and the effluent parameters designated herein with the results sent to this Agency. Should additional treatment be necessary to meet the standards of 35 Ill. Adm. Code 406.106, a Supplemental Permit must be obtained. Discharge from ponds is not allowed unless applicable effluent and water quality standards are met in the basin discharge(s).
- 8. This Agency must be informed in writing and an application submitted if drainage, which was previously classified as alkaline (pH greater than 6.0), becomes acid (pH less than 6.0) or ferruginous (base flow with an iron concentration greater than 10 mg/l). The type of drainage reporting to the basin should be reclassified in a manner consistent with the applicable rule of 35 lll. Adm. Code 406 as amended in R84-29 at 11 lll. Reg. 12899. The application should discuss the treatment method and demonstrate how the discharge will meet the applicable standards.
- A permittee has the obligation to add a settling aid if necessary to meet the suspended solids or settleable solids effluent standards. The selection of a settling aid and the application practice shall be in accordance with a. or b. below
 - a. Alum (Al₂(SO₄)₃), hydrated slime (Ca(OH)₂), soda ash (Na₂CO₃), alkaline pit pumpage, acetylene production by-product (tested for impurities), and ground limestone are acceptable settling aids and are hereby permitted for alkaline mine drainage sedimentation ponds.
 - b. Any other settling aids such as commercial flocculents and coagulants are permitted <u>only on prior approval from the Agency</u>. To obtain approval a permitted must demonstrate in writing to the Agency that such use will not cause a violation of the toxic substances standard of 35 III. Adm. Code 302.210 or of the appropriate effluent and water quality standards of 35 III. Adm. Code parts 302, 304, and 406.
- 10. A general plan for the nature and disposition of all liquids used to drill boreholes shall be filed with this Agency prior to any such operation. This plan should be filed at such time that the operator becomes aware of the need to drill unless the plan of operation was contained in a previously approved application. After settling, recirculation water which meets the requirements of 35 III. Adm. Code 406.106 and 406.202, may be discharged. The use of additives in the recirculation water which require treatment other than settling to comply with the Act will require a revised permit.
- 11. Any of the following shall be a violation of the provisions required under 35 III. Adm. Code 406.202:
 - It is demonstrated that an adverse effect on the environment in and around the receiving stream has occurred or is likely to occur.
 - b. It is demonstrated that the discharge has adversely affected or is likely to adversely affect any public water supply.

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Construction Authorization No. 9448-99

C. A. Date: August 11, 2010

- c. The Agency determines that the permittee is not utilizing Good Mining Practices in accordance with 35 III. Adm. Code 406.204 which are fully described in detail in Sections 406.205, 406.206, 406.207 and 406.208 in order to minimize the discharge of total dissolved solids, chloride, sulfate, iron and manganese. To the extent practical, such Good Mining Practices shall be implemented to:
 - Stop or minimize water from coming into contact with disturbed areas through the use of diversions and/or runoff controls (Section 406.205).
 - Retention and control within the site of waters exposed to disturbed materials utilizing erosion controls, sedimentation controls, water reuse or recirculation, minimization of exposure to disturbed materials, etc. (Section 406.206).
 - Control and treatment of waters discharged from the site by regulation of flow of discharges and/or routing of discharges to more suitable discharge locations (Section 406.207).
 - iv. Utilized unconventional practices to prevent the production or discharge of waters containing elevated contaminant concentrations such as diversion of groundwater prior to entry into a surface or underground mine, dewatering practices to remove clean water prior to contacting disturbed materials and/or any additional practices demonstrated to be effective in reducing contaminant levels in discharges (Section 406.208).

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Special Conditions

Special Condition No. 1: No effluent from any mine related facility area under this permit shall, alone or in combination with other sources, cause a violation of any applicable water quality standard as set out in the Illinois Pollution Control Board Rules and Regulations, Subtitle C: Water Pollution.

<u>Special Condition No. 2</u>: Samples taken in compliance with the effluent monitoring requirements shall be taken at a point representative of the discharge, but prior to entry into the receiving stream.

<u>Special Condition No. 3</u>: All periodic monitoring and reporting forms, including Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) forms, shall be submitted to the Agency according to the schedule outlined in Special Condition No. 4 or 5 below with one (1) copy forwarded to each of the following addresses:

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Division of Water Pollution Control 1021 North Grand Ave., East P.O. Box 19276 Springfield, IL 62794-9276 Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Mine Pollution Control Program 2309 West Main Street, Suite 116 Marlon, Illinois 62959

Attn: Compliance Assurance Section

Should electronic filing be available and elected for any periodic monitoring and reporting requirements, the Agency shall be notified via correspondence or e-mail at such time that the electronic filing has been completed.

Special Condition No. 4: Completed Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) forms and stream monitoring results, shall be retained by the Permittee for a period of three (3) months and shall be mailed and received by the IEPA at the addresses indicated in Special Condition No. 3 above in accordance with the following schedule, unless otherwise specified by the permitting authority.

Period

Received by IEPA

January, February, March April, May, June July, August, September October, November, December

April 15 July 15 October 15 January 15

The Permittee shall record discharge monitoring results on Discharge Monitoring Report forms (DMR's) using one such form for each applicable Discharge Condition each month.

Special Condition No. 5: Completed periodic monitoring and reporting, other than DMR's and stream monitoring (i.e., groundwater monitoring, coal combustion waste analysis reports, etc.), shall be retained by the Permittee for a period of three (3) months and shall be mailed and received by the IEPA at the addresses indicated in Special Condition No. 3 above in accordance with the following schedule, unless otherwise specified by the permitting authority.

Period

Received by IEPA

January, February, March April, May, June July, August, September October, November, December May 1 August 1 November 1 February 1

Special Condition No. 6: If an applicable effluent standard or limitation is promulgated under Sections 301(b)(2)(C) and (D), 304(b)(2), and 307(a)(2) of the Clean Water Act and that effluent standard or limitation is more stringent than any effluent limitation in the permit or controls a pollutant not limited in the NPDES Permit, the Agency shall revise or modify the permit in accordance with the more stringent standard or prohibition and shall so notify the permittee.

<u>Special Condition No. 7</u>: The permittee shall notify the Agency in writing by certified mail within thirty days of abandonment, cessation, or suspension of active mining for thirty days or more unless caused by a labor dispute. During cessation or suspension of active mining, whether caused by a labor dispute or not, the permittee shall provide whatever interim impoundment, drainage diversion, and wastewater treatment is necessary to avoid violations of the Act or Subtitle D.

Special Condition No. 8: Plans must be submitted to and approved by this Agency prior to construction of a sedimentation pond. At such time as runoff water is collected in the sedimentation pond, a sample shall be collected and analyzed for the parameters designated as 1M-15M under Part 5-C of Form 2C and the effluent parameters designated herein with the results sent to this Agency. Should additional treatment be necessary to meet these standards, a Supplemental Permit must also be obtained. Discharge from a pond is not allowed unless applicable effluent and water quality standards are met.

NPDES Permit No. IL0042773

Special Conditions

Special Condition No. 9: The special reclamation area effluent standards of 35 III. Adm. Code 406.109 apply only on approval from the Agency. To obtain approval, a request form and supporting documentation shall be submitted 45 days prior to the month that the permittee wishes the discharge be classified as a reclamation area discharge. The Agency will notify the permittee upon approval of the change.

Special Condition No. 10: The special stormwater effluent standards apply only on approval from the Agency. To obtain approval, a request with supporting documentation shall be submitted 45 days prior to the month that the permittee proposes the discharge to be classified as a stormwater discharge. The documentation supporting the request shall include analysis results indicating the discharge will consistently comply with reclamation area discharge effluent standards. The Agency will notify the permittee upon approval of the change.

Special Condition No. 11: Annual stormwater monitoring is required for all discharges not reporting to a sediment basin until approval to cease such monitoring is obtained from the Agency.

- a. Each discharge must be monitored for pH and settleable solids annually.
- Analysis of samples must be submitted with second quarter Discharge Monitoring Reports. A map with discharge locations
 must be included in this submittal.
- c. If discharges can be shown to be similar, a plan may be submitted by November 1 of each year preceding sampling to propose grouping of similar discharges and/or update previously submitted groupings. If updating of a previously submitted plan is not necessary, a written notification to the Agency indicating such is required. Upon approval from the Agency, one representative sample for each group may be submitted.

Special Condition No. 12: Sediment Pond Operation and Maintenance (Outfall 002):

- a. For discharges resulting from precipitation events, in addition to the alternate effluent (Discharge Condition Nos. II and III) monitoring requirements, as indicated on the applicable effluent pages of this Permit, discharges from Outfall 002 shall be monitored and reported for Discharge Rate, Sulfate, Chloride and Hardness.
- b. The following sampling and monitoring requirements are applicable to flow in the unnamed tributary to Rocky Branch which receive discharges from Outfall 002.
 - All sampling and monitoring required under 12(b)(ii) and (iii) below shall be performed during a discharge and monitoring event from the associated outfall.
 - ii. The unnamed tributary to Rocky Branch shall be monitored and reported quarterly for Discharge Rate, Chloride, Sulfate and Hardness downstream of the associated outfall. This downstream monitoring shall be performed a sufficient distance downstream of the associated outfall to ensure that complete mixing has occurred. At such time that sufficient information has been collected regarding receiving stream flow characteristics and in-stream contaminant concentrations the permittee may request a re-evaluation of the monitoring frequency required herein for possible reduction or elimination. For the purpose of re-evaluating the downstream monitoring frequency of the receiving stream, "sufficient information" is defined as a minimum of ten (10) quarterly sampling events.

In the event that downstream monitoring of the receiving waters is eliminated during the term of this permit based on an evaluation of the quarterly data, a minimum of three (3) additional samples analyzed for the parameters identified above must be submitted with the permit renewal application a minimum of 180 days prior to expiration of this permit.

iii. The unnamed tributary to Rocky Branch shall be monitored and reported annually for Discharge Rate, Chloride, Sulfate and Hardness upstream of the associated outfall, if applicable.

Special Condition No. 13: Data collected in accordance with Special Condition No. 12 above will be utilized to evaluate the appropriateness of the effluent limits established in this Permit. Should the Agency's evaluation of this data indicate revised effluent limits are warranted; this permit may be reopened and modified to incorporate more appropriate effluent limitations. This data will also be used for determination of effluent limitations at the time of permit renewal.

Special Condition No. 14: Mercury shall be monitored quarterly until a minimum of ten (10) samples have been collected. Samples shall be collected and tested in accordance with USEPA 1631E using the option at Section 11.1.1.2 requiring the heating of samples at 50°C for 6 hours in a BrCl solution in closed vessels. This test method has a Method Detection Limit (MDL) of 0.001 ug/l. The results of such testing must be submitted with the quarterly Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs). The Permittee may submit a written request to the Agency to discontinue quarterly Mercury monitoring if the sampling results show no reasonable potential to exceed the Mercury water quality standard.

Page 12.

Attachment H

Standard Conditions

Definitions

Act means the Illinois Environmental Protection Act, 415 ILCS 5 as Amended.

Agency means the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency.

Board means the Illinois Pollution Control Board.

Clean Water Act (formerly referred to as the Federal Water Pollution Control Act) means Pub. L 92-500, as amended. 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.

NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) means the national program for Issuing, modifying, revoking and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing permits, and imposing and enforcing pretreatment requirements, under Sections 307, 402, 318 and 405 of the Clean Water Act.

USEPA means the United States Environmental Protection Agency.

Daily Discharge means the discharge of a pollutant measured during a calendar day or any 24-hour period that reasonably represents the calendar day for purposes of sampling. For pollutants with limitations expressed in units of mass, the "daily discharge" is calculated as the total mass of the pollutant discharged over the day. For pollutants with limitations expressed in other units of measurements, the "daily discharge" is calculated as the average measurement of the pollutant over the day.

Maximum Dally Discharge Limitation (daily maximum) means the highest allowable daily

Average Monthly Discharge Limitation (30 day average) means the highest allowable average of delly discharges over a calendar month, calculated as the sum of all delly discharges measured during a calendar month divided by the number of delly discharges measured during that month.

Average Weekly Discharge Limitation (7 day average) means the highest allowable average of daily discharges over a calendar week, calculated as the sum of all daily discharges measured during a calendar week divided by the number of daily discharges measured during that week.

Best Management Practices (BMPs) means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to prevent or reduce the pollution of waters of the State. BMPs also include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw material storage.

Allquot means a sample of specified volume used to make up a total composite sample.

Grab Sample means an individual sample of at least 100 milliliters collected at a randomlyselected time over a period not exceeding 15 minutes.

24 Hour Composite Sample means a combination of at least 6 sample aliquots of at least 100 millilitiers, collected at periodic intervals during the operating hours of a facility over a 24-hour period.

8 Hour Composite Sample means a combination of at least 3 sample aliquots of at least 100 milliliters, collected at periodic intervals during the operating hours of a facility over an 8-hour period.

Flow Proportional Composite Sample means a combination of sample pliquots of at least 100 millifliers collected at periodic intervals such that either the time interval between each allquot or the volume of each allquot is proportional to either the stream flow at the time of sampling or the total stream flow since the collection of the previous aliquot.

- (1) Duty to comply. The permittee must comply with all conditions of this permit. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the Act and is grounds for enforcement action, permit termination, revocation and reissuance, modification, or for denial of a permit renewal application. The permittee shall comply with effluent standards or prohibitions established under Section 307(a) of the Clean Water Act for toxic poliutants within the time provided in the regulations that establish these standards or prohibitions, even if the permit has not yet been modified to incorporate the requirement.
- (2) Duty to reapply. If the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by this permit after the expiration date of this permit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit, if the permittee submits a proper application as required by the Agency no later than 180 days prior to the expiration date, this permit shall continue in full force and effect until the final Agency decision on the application has been made.
- (3) Need to halt or reduce activity not a defense. It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit.
- (4) Duty to mitigate. The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge in violation of this permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the environment.
- (5) Proper operation and maintenance. The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain alt facilities and systems of treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with conditions of this permit. Proper operation and maintenance includes effective performance, adequate funding, adequate operator staffing and traking, and adequate laboralory and process controls, including appropriate quality assurance procedures. This provision requires the operation of back-up, or auxiliary facilities, or similar systems only when necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit.

- (5) Permit actions. This permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause by the Agency pursuant to 40 CFR 122.62. The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance, does not stay any permit condition.
- (7) Property rights. This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive griplings.
- (8) Duty to provide information. The permittee shall furnish to the Agency within a reasonable time, any information which the Agency may request to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this permit, or to determine compliance with the permit. The permittee shall also furnish to the Agency, upon request, copies of records required to be kept by this permit.
- (9) Inspection and entry. The permittee shall allow an authorized representative of the Agency, upon the presentation of credentials and other documents as may be required by law, to:
 - (a) Enter upon the permittee's premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or conducted, or where records must be kept under the conditions of this permit;
 - (b) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions of this permit;
 - (c) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit and
 - (d) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance, or as otherwise authorized by the Act, any substances or parameters at any location.
- (10) Monitoring and records.
 - (a) Samples and measurements taken for the purpose of monitoring shall be representative of the monitored activity.
 - (b) The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration and maintenance records, and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to complete the application for this permit, for a period of at least 3 years from the date of this permit, measurement, report or application. This period may be extended by request of the Agency at any time.
 - (c) Records of monitoring information shall include:
 - (1) The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;
 - (2) The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements;
 - (3) The date(s) analyses were performed;
 - (4) The individual(s) who performed the analyses;
 - (5) The analytical techniques or methods used; and
 - (6) The results of such analyses.
 - (d) Monitoring must be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40 CFR Part 136, unless other test procedures have been specified in this permit. Where no test procedure under 40 CFR Part 136 has been approved, the permittee must submit to the Agency a test method for approval. The permittee shall cellibrate and perform maintenance procedures on all monitoring and analytical instrumentation at intervats to ensure accuracy of measurements.
- (11) Signatory requirement. All applications, reports or information submitted to the Agency shall be signed and certified.
 - (a) Application. All permit applications shall be signed as follows:
 - For a corporation: by a principal executive officer of at least the level of vice president or a person or position having overall responsibility for environmental matters for the corporation;
 - (2) For a partnership or sole proprietorship; by a general partner or the proprietor, respectively; or
 - (3) For a municipality, State, Federal, or other public agency: by either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official.
 - (b) Reports. All reports required by permits, or other information requested by the Agency shall be signed by a person described in paragraph (a) or by a duly authorized representative of that person. A person is a duly authorized representative only if:
 - (1) The authorization is made in writing by a person described in paragraph (a); and
 - (2) The authorization specifies either an individual or a position responsible for the overall operation of the facility, from which the discharge originates, such as a plant manager, superintendent or person of equivalent responsibility; and
 - (3) The written authorization is submitted to the Agency.